Public Document Pack
Mark Saccoccio
Town Clerk
01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

22 January 2019
To: The Town Mayor and all Members of Leighton-Linslade Town Council

NOTICE OF MEETING
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Leighton-Linslade Town Council to
be held on Monday, 28 January 2019 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Council
Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Bedfordshire, LU7
1HD.

M Saccoccio
Town Clerk
Prayers will be said at 1920 hours

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting.
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town
Clerk.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).

3.

TOWN MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

4.

LEADERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS

5.

QUESTIONS

Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Bedfordshire, LU7 1HD

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

Monday, 28 January 2019

(a) To receive questions and statements from members of the public as
provided for in Standing Order Nos.1 (f) and 1 (h)
(b) To receive questions from Councillors as provided for in Standing Order
No.8 (a) , provided three clear days’ notice of the question has been given
to the person to whom it is addressed.
6.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)
To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Town Council
meeting held on 24 September 2018.

7.

COMMITTEE MINUTES
To receive the Minutes of Committee meetings (attached) and to consider any
recommendations contained therein:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)

Planning & Transport Committee 03 October 2018
Cultural & Economic Services Committee
15 October 2018
Planning & Transport Committee 24 October 2018
Planning & Transport Committee 14 November 2018
Policy & Finance Committee
19 November 2018
Partnership Committee
29 November 2018
Grounds & Environmental Services Committee
03 December 2018
h)
Cultural & Economic Services Committee 10 December 2018
Recommendation at 150/CE (Heritage Trail)
i)
Planning & Transport Committee 12 December 2018
j)
Planning & Transport Committee 09 January 2019
k)
Policy & Finance Committee
21 January 2019
Recommendation at 439/PF (see Agenda item 8)
Recommendation at 443/PF (see Agenda item 11)
Recommendation at 444/PF (Calendar of Meetings)
Recommendations at 445/PF (see Agenda item 9
Recommendation at 448/PF (see Agenda item 14)
Recommendation at 450/PF (see Agenda item 19)
8.

STANDING ORDERS
Further to the recommendation made the Policy and Finance Committee on 21
January 2019, to receive a report regarding Standing Orders (attached) and to
consider the recommendation/s contained therein.

9.

BUDGET AND PRECEPT FOR 2019-2020
Further to the recommendation made by the Policy and Finance Committee on
21 January 2019, to receive the attached report and to approve the budget and
set the precept for 2019-2020.

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
10.

Monday, 28 January 2019

TOWN COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 2019-2024 (Pages 7 - 24)
To receive a verbal presentation regarding proposed Town Council objectives
for the next five years and to consider approving the attached document.

11.

RISK REGISTER ACTION PLAN
Further to the recommendation from the Policy and Finance Committee on 21
January 2019, to approve the Risk Register and Action Plan for 2019-2020 (to
be signed by the Town Mayor. (attached).

12.

TAXI RANK (Pages 25 - 28)
To receive a report regarding the town centre taxi rank (attached) and to
consider the recommendations contained therein.

13.

REPORT FROM CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCILLORS
To receive a verbal update from Central Bedfordshire Councillors on matters
affecting the parish (if applicable).

14.

HONORARY BURGESS NOMINATIONS 2019 (Pages 29 - 34)
To receive and consider one nomination for the 2019 Honorary Burgess award,
as recommended by the Grants & Awards Sub-Committee on 5 November
2018 and the Policy & Finance Committee on 21 January 2019 (information
attached).

15.

CORPORATE BEHAVIOURS (Pages 35 - 40)
Further to the Personnel Sub-Committee meeting held on 7 January 2019, to
receive a report regarding corporate behaviours and to consider the
recommendation/s contained therein (attached).

16.

POLICE CRIME COMMISSIONER (Pages 41 - 42)
To receive and consider correspondence dated 22 January 2019 from the
Police Crime Commissioner (attached).

17.

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES
To consider any changes to appointments and to receive verbal reports from
Councillors, where applicable.

18.

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES
To consider any changes to appointments, if applicable.

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
19.

Monday, 28 January 2019

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
The Committee may consider it appropriate to consider the following resolution
should they consider that any discussion would be prejudicial to the public
interests: that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 1960, the
public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature of the business
about to be transacted which involves the likely disclosure of exempt
information. The public and press to withdraw from the meeting during
consideration of detailed discussion regarding:
a.
Pages Park pavilion (all relevant documentation can be found in the
agendas for Grounds & Environmental Services Committee on 3.12.2018 and
the Policy & Finance Committee on 21.1.2019)

Agenda Item 6
LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING
24 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT 1930 HOURS
Present: Councillors
A Brandham
S Cotter
A Dodwell
T Morris
C Palmer
C Perham
G Perham
D Bowater
K Ferguson
S Rahman
E Wallace

259

Also in attendance:

S Sandiford (Head of Democratic and Central
Services)
Ian Haynes, (Head of Grounds and
Environmental Services)
V Cannon (Head of Cultural and Economic
Services)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)
M King (People and Places)

Members of the Public:

0

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence had been received and were accepted from Councillors
J M Freeman, R Berry, K Cursons, S Ward, S Jones, C Chambers, D Perham,
B Spurr and F Kharawala, and from the Town Clerk.

260

DECLARATIONS OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE
Members were asked to declare any interests, and the nature of those interests,
that they might have in any of the items under consideration at the meeting.
No declarations were made and no dispensations had been requested.

261

TOWN MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS
Councillor C Palmer advised Council that he had attended 25 engagements
since the last Council meeting in June including the Carnival, Charity Meal,

Page 1

Page 111

Council Meeting

24 SEPTEMBER 2018

Schools Golf Competition, McMillian Cancer morning, Ramblers Walk and
Afternoon Tea and had raised approximately £1,400 so far. Forthcoming
Charity events included the Charity Ball in October, Rock of Ages concert in
November and a Coffee Morning and Carol Service in December, which he
hoped Councillors would support.
.
262

LEADERS ANNOUNCEMENTS
Councillor E Wallace thanked the Mayor for his continued work and attending
events on behalf of the Town Council. He also thanked all concerned for their
work in promoting the Youth Promise Grant and hoped this would achieve
sustainable returns for the community and organisations involved.
Congratulations were also given to Councillor Palmer, Rosie Palmer and the
volunteers for their hard work and achievements in Anglia in Bloom and the ongoing transformation of Linslade Recreation Ground which would continue to
evolve and improve to the benefit of the community.
Looking forward to the future and the refurbishment of Pages Park which would
be the next project to reap benefits for the town and community.

263

QUESTIONS
(a) There were no questions from members of the public.
(b) No questions had been received from Councillors

264

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
Council received the draft minutes of the previous Council meeting held on 25
June 2018 for consideration.
Minute reference 254 – it was confirmed there would be no permanent repair to
the canal bridge in the autumn as the temporary repair was holding up at
present. It was anticipated the canal bridge and Vimy Road roundabout would
be repaired in the new financial year.
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Council meeting held on 25 June 2018
be approved as a correct record and were signed accordingly.

265

TOWN BENCHMARKING REPORT
By invitation, Mike King of People and Places gave a summary presentation on
the second town benchmarking report which included information on car
parking, vacancy rates, footfall and how much people spend on average when
visiting the town centre. One thousand two hundred survey forms had been
returned within Leighton Buzzard and showed that over 66% recommended a
visit to the town centre and business performance had grown. The negative

Page 2

Page 112

Council Meeting

24 SEPTEMBER 2018

comments included anti-social behaviour within the town, lack of car parking and
the mix of retail businesses especially the lack of clothing shops.
The functionality of town centres would need to change to continue to attract
customers, with a greater leisure and cultural offer as well as retail shops.
Members agreed that leisure and culture would be a driver for town centres in
future to ensure continued growth.
Members thanked Mike King for his presentation.
RESOLVED to note the information.
266

COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council received the draft minutes of Committee meetings held since the
Council Meeting on 25 June 2018.
RESOLVED to receive the minutes of the following meetings:
(a) Planning & Transport Committee 11 July 2018
(b) Cultural & Economic Services Committee 23 July 2018
(c) Policy & Finance Committee 30 July 2018
Minute reference 389/PF: Council gave consideration to the recommendation
made by Policy & Finance 30 July 2018 in respect of approval of a Document
Retention Policy.
RESOLVED to approve the Document Retention Policy.
(d) Planning & Transport Committee 1 August 2018
(e) Planning & Transport Committee 22 August 2018
(f) Cultural & Economic Services Committee 3 September 2018
(g) Partnership Committee 6 September 2018
Minute reference 236/LLP(b) – a request was made that the minutes include
reference to the request made of Central Bedfordshire Council: to ensure that
development of the land south of the High Street be kept as a priority, with the
development coming forward comprehensively rather than in piecemeal
fashion.
(h) Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 10 September 2018
(i) Planning & Transport Committee 12 September 2018
(j) Policy & Finance Committee 17 September 2018
Minute reference 399/PF: Council received a recommendation made by Policy
& Finance 17 September 2018 to endorse the Unauthorised Encampment
Policy.

Page 3

Page 113

Council Meeting

24 SEPTEMBER 2018

RESOLVED to approve the Unauthorised Encampment Management
Policy –
i)

ii)

The Town Council will by way of appropriate and measured target
hardening take all reasonable steps to avoid the potential for future
unauthorised encampments to take place on Town Council land.
That delegated powers be afforded to the Town Clerk in respects of
dealing with unauthorised encampments should and when they
occur.

Minute reference 410/PF: Professional Fees - it was noted that the
recommendations would be considered later in the meeting as a separate
agenda item.
267

2017-2018 YEAR END ACCOUNTS
Council received the Auditor’s Certificate and Opinion on the Annual Return for
2017-2018. One very minor issue had been identified by the External Auditor
and this was simply the ticking of a box in section K Internal Control Objective
but no other cause for concern raised.
RESOLVED to approve and accept the Auditor’s Certificate and Opinion
on the Annual Return for 2017-2018.

268

QUARTERLY UPDATE
A brief presentation was given to Council by Heads of Service, highlighting the
events of the previous quarter including organisational and technical
developments, Mayoral fundraising, the commencement of a residents’ survey
to help inform future objectives, events including the summer Band Concerts
and Best Bar None awards, the success of the Grounds Team and volunteers
in gaining 12 gold awards in the 2018 Anglia in Bloom campaign, a highly
successful social media campaign for the market and activities undertaken by
the young people at TACTIC. It was also noted that the Youth Promise Grant
monies were almost entirely committed in support of local organisations who
provide facilities for young people within Leighton-Linslade.
Forthcoming projects and events included Living History Day, Remembrance
Sunday and the Christmas Festival, as well as the commencement of the new
three-year Christmas lighting contract.
RESOLVED to note the information.

269

REPORT FROM CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCILLORS
No new information was available from Central Bedfordshire Councillors.
However a question was raised requesting that the Central Bedfordshire
Councillors listen and offer support to a local Village Focus Group who would be
attending a Central Bedfordshire Council Meeting to raise their concerns
regarding traveller problems within the surrounding villages.

Page 4

Page 114

Council Meeting

24 SEPTEMBER 2018

RESOLVED to note the information.
270

APPOINTMENT TO OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no changes or announcements made regarding outside bodies.
RESOLVED to note the information.

271

APPOINTMENT TO COMMITTEES
There were no changes required to appointments to Committees.

272

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
RESOLVED that under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act
1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature of
the business about to be transacted which involves the likely disclosure
of exempt information. The public and press to withdraw from the meeting
during consideration of detailed discussion regarding Town Council
Matters.

273

TOWN COUNCIL MATTERS
Minute reference 410/PF Professional Fees – having received a report and
supporting documentation, the Council gave consideration to the
recommendation made by the Policy & Finance Committee on 17 September
2018 in respect of professional fees.
RESOLVED:
(i) to contest the Judicial Review lodged with the High Court in respects
of Town Council consultation of market traders on the use of long-service
discounts.
(ii) that the Town Council draws down £20,000 from Town Council
reserves to meet a likely shortfall in the Professional Fees Budget.

The meeting closed at 2106 hours.
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 24 SEPTEMBER 2018.

Chair

28 JANUARY 2019

Page 5

Page 115

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Agenda Item 10

Council
Date:

28 January 2019

Title:

Five Year Plan and Objectives (2019-24)

Purposes of the Report:

To endorse the 5 Year Plan and
Objectives (2019-24) in order to provide
the Town Council with a strategic
direction over the plan period

Contact Officer:

Mark Saccoccio, Town Clerk
Sarah Sandiford, Head of Democratic
and Central Services

Corporate Objective/s

Implications:
Financial

To promote and develop a vibrant town through
partnership working and initiatives including
management of the street market, provision of
town and community promotions, town centre
enhancements, tourism and practical support for
local businesses.
√

The adoption of a 5 Year Plan
has financial implications as
new projects may well have a
capital as well as staffing cost
implications
It is likely that as the parish
expands together with the
devolution of more services
down to the town council, this
will have human resource
implications
For the reasons set out above,

Human Resources

Operational/Service
delivery
Procedural/Legal

1.

√
√

Public engagement legitimises
and add greater weight to the 5
Year Plan

RECOMMENDATIONS
Should members be minded:

Page 7

1.1

To endorse the 5 Year Plan and Objectives in order to provide the Town
Council and the Parish with a strategic direction over the Plan period.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

As Members are minded, the Town Council developed a 3 Year Plan (2015-18)
to provide its residents with a clear understanding of what the Town Council
was working towards and how it would be delivered over that period. With many
of the objectives set out therein achieved, the Town Council has created a new
set of objectives for the coming 5 years which are representative of the
parishes’ status as a growth area. Once adopted, it is hoped that the 5 Year
Plan will help inform Section 106 Negotiations between Central Bedfordshire
Council (The Principal Authority) and the developers.

2.2

As a growth area, the parish has experienced significant growth over the past
decade and this will continue for at least another 10 years. It is estimated that
the present population will increase by at least 5,000 residents taking the
population to over 46,500 by 2023. Many younger people and families are
attracted to the burgeoning parish and with this, comes new demands,
expectations and needs. In addition, the oughtn’t to lose sight of its
responsibilities to the needs of its established residents also.

2.3

In July 2018, “Howdo Research” consultants were appointed to carry out a
resident’s survey. Its purpose to ensure that the emerging objectives as set out
in the emerging 5 Year Plan align with the expectations of our residents. At its
meeting held 19th November 2018, the Policy and Finance Committee were
provided with the headline findings from the resident’s survey. A total of 488
face to face interviews were completed between September and November.

2.4

Of those interviewed, 68% are of the opinion that they are getting good value
for money from the services the Town Council provides. Furthermore, a vibrant
town centre remains a priority as well as parks and open spaces. Within the
older age group, the perceived lack of police resources and anti-social
behaviour were raised as concerns. Significantly, one area of focus was a
perceived lack of activities for young people.

2.5

Each standing Committee has been presented with its own objectives and
invited to comment and recommend any changes.

3.

NEXT STEPS

3.1

Should the Town Council be minded to endorse the recommendation, the draft
document will thereafter be adopted as its strategic plan for the period 201924. In doing so, the Plan will provide the Council with direction over its period
and in turn, inform future budget setting rounds.

3.2

As a live document, the Plan will be subject to constant review and update.

Page 8

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

Page 11

FIVE YEAR PLAN & OBJECTIVES 2019 – 2024

Contents
1.0

Foreword by the Town Clerk

2.0

Council achievements 2015-2018

3.0

Executive summary

4.0

An overview of Leighton Buzzard and Linslade

5.0

An overview of Leighton-Linslade Town Council

6.0

Town Council corporate priorities and key
objectives for 2019-2024

If you would like to comment on the Town Council’s Five Year Plan and Objectives for 2019-2024,
please do not hesitate to contact us by one of the following means:
By telephone: 01525 631920
By email: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
In person or by letter:
Mark Saccoccio, Town Clerk
Leighton-Linslade Town Council
The White House
Hockliffe Street
Leighton Buzzard
Bedfordshire
LU7 1HD

Page2 12

FIVE YEAR PLAN & OBJECTIVES 2019 – 2024

1.0 Foreword
It is with great pleasure that as Town Clerk, I am able to introduce the
Town Council’s five year plan for the period 2019-2024.
As the largest town in Central Bedfordshire, the Town Council considered
it opportune to create a document that celebrates its most recent
successes and looking forward, how we intend to plan, monitor and
improve the services we deliver to the Parish, its businesses and visitors
alike. In the service of our community, we want to be able to demonstrate that we can continue to
provide quality services be it our parks, events or markets in an efficient and cost effective manner.
The Council’s previous three year plan, for the period 2015-2018, contained some 33 objectives as
well as a number of aspirations taken forward from the previous Big Plan. On the next page you will
be able to read about just a few of the successes from that plan. Having completed the majority of
those goals, during 2018 the Council began to look ahead to the next few years. Part of this process
included a survey done with residents in the Autumn of 2018, in which we sought to ask questions of
residents about their views regarding the Town Council and their opinions on priorities for the next
few years.
The Town Council is always aware that it can be difficult for people to know which Council is
responsible for which services. It was not surprising that the majority of concerns raised by residents
during the survey were in respect of matters which are not within the Town Council’s control –
including traffic, car parking, the mix of retailers in our town, concerns regarding antisocial behaviour
and the future of the education system.
Whilst the Town Council has no statutory powers or budgets to deal with these matters, we will
continue to work as closely as we can with partners including Central Bedfordshire Council and
Bedfordshire Police, to raise awareness of issues in our town and where possible, to help in developing
solutions.
The five year plan you see here is focussed on those matters for which the Town Council is able to
have a direct influence and which we sincerely hope will improve the quality of life for our residents.
Town Council officers and councillors are always willing to listen to queries, suggestions or concerns.
Please do not hesitate to contact us at the White House or through electronic media such as our
website or social media channels.
Finally, if you do not already do so, please do sign up to follow our frequent updates on social media
or download the Town Council’s App.
Mark Saccoccio
Town Clerk
Leighton-Linslade Town Council

3 13
Page

FIVE YEAR PLAN & OBJECTIVES 2019 – 2024

2.0 Town Council achievements 2015-2018
The Three Year Plan adopted by Council in 2015 contained a number of objectives.
Unlike the previous Big Plan (which contained many high-level aspirations requiring the
participation of many different stakeholders), the intention of this document is to determine
projects and objectives which the Town Council would be able to deliver within its own statutory
powers and budgets.
This approach was driven through the Town Council’s standing committees and was supported by
the development of a five year financial plan.
Just a few of the successful outcomes from the 2015-2018 plan were:














Securing Town Council accommodation for the next 20 years
Achieving Gold standard Quality status under the Local Council Award scheme
Progress with computerisation of cemetery records
Expanding the reach of the Teenage Advice and Information Centre with sessions in
Linslade and southern Leighton Buzzard, as well as from the town centre
Securing a three year Christmas lights contract
Successfully bidding for grant funding of £113,000 from Central Bedfordshire Council as
part of its Market Towns Regeneration Fund. This grant part-funded three schemes: the
relaunch of the street market, the installation of electronic signage and the installation of
architectural lighting to enhance the town centre
Establishing a thriving and successful Best Bar None scheme for licensed premises
Implementing a range of enhancements to the cemetery service including a fully selffunded mausoleum
Provision of outdoor gym equipment in Astral Park, Pages Park and Linslade Recreation
Ground
Achieving four Green Flag awards (three parks and Vandyke Road cemetery)
Refurbishing the public conveniences in Parsons Close Recreation Ground
Continuing to support and build on the success of the annual Anglia in Bloom campaign,
leading the town to win several Gold and Silver accolades

Helping to fund vital community work and projects remains a priority for the Town Council and
annual grants in excess of £60,000 are paid to a number of organisations including the LeightonLinslade Music Centre and Leighton-Linslade Citizens Advice.
In addition to the existing grants, the Council decided during 2017 to make available a grant fund
of £150,000 for the purpose of supporting the expansion of services and facilities for young
people in the town. The Youth Promise grant scheme was hugely successful with a number of
organisations receiving funding for projects as diverse as funding a junior tennis court, enhancing
the provision of hockey, youth counselling services, youth training, purchase of equipment and
training/recruitment of leaders and coaches for youth groups. The Town Council will continue to
monitor the expenditure of these grants, which it is hoped will allow all the groups involved to
enhance their services and encourage greater attendance from the town’s young people.

Page4 14

FIVE YEAR PLAN & OBJECTIVES 2019 – 2024

5 15
Page

FIVE YEAR PLAN & OBJECTIVES 2019 – 2024

3.0 Executive Summary
The new Five Year Plan has been developed to provide a clear understanding of what the Council
is working towards and how it intends to deliver its key objectives. The Town Council’s vision is: “a
community to be proud of”.
Leighton-Linslade Town Council is committed to improving and enhancing Leighton Buzzard and
Linslade in an environmentally sustainable manner, having regard to the identified needs and
wishes of all sections of the community. The Town Council will examine in detail its responsibilities,
review them and set a viable and achievable development plan for the future.
The Town Council continues to make significant improvements within the local community by
working closely and in partnership with other organisations. These organisations are key
contributors to the quality of life in our town and represent the diversity of the local community
and include voluntary, business and public sectors.
The document sets out the Town Council’s vision and its corporate priorities for the next five years,
which are:
· To ensure value for money, operational efficiency and a structure which will underpin current
and future service delivery by the Town Council.
· To recognise and embrace the growth of our community and to seek to influence the local
authority and partners to ensure adequate infrastructure provision.
· To continue to support a vibrant town through partnership working and
initiatives including
management of the street market, support for local businesses, town and community
promotions and town centre enhancements.
· To provide great public open spaces with varied opportunities for sport and leisure and to exceed
expectations in delivering cemetery and allotment services.
The Five Year Plan does not focus on the work the Council does towards influencing services
provided by others. It does focus on what the Council wants to and can achieve. The Council will
continue to work in partnership with local organisations towards the improvement and
enhancement of services and will continue to support those organisations in a proactive manner.
The document will be reviewed, revised and updated periodically. Achievements will be reported
through the Council’s annual reporting process.

Page6 16

FIVE YEAR PLAN & OBJECTIVES 2019 – 2024

2.0

4.0 Overview of Leighton Buzzard and Linslade
Leighton-Linslade is the largest town in the administrative area of Central Bedfordshire
Council. Historically, Leighton Buzzard has always been within Bedfordshire, with the area
of Linslade transferring from Buckinghamshire in 1965. The parish has an estimated
population of just under 40,000 (37,470 according to the 2011 census with 16,410
dwellings). The population continues to grow as further housing development takes place
to the south and east of the town.
The unemployment rate in Leighton-Linslade is on a par with the rate in Central Bedfordshire
and lower than the England average. Ideally placed within an hour of London, the town is an
ideal location for commuters and a significant proportion of those living in the parish work
outside it.
The parish contains a number of ancient buildings including All Saints Church and the Market
Cross monument. Surrounded by quarries, the town is famous for its high quality sand. The
Narrow Gauge Railway and the Grand Union Canal remain reminders of the industrial links
of the past and the key strategic location of the town. Leighton Buzzard has held a market
for many hundreds of years and this continues to be held today, every Tuesday and Saturday
now under the management of the Town Council.

7 17
Page

FIVE YEAR PLAN & OBJECTIVES 2019 – 2024

5.0 Overview of Leighton-Linslade Town Council
Leighton-Linslade Town Council came into existence on 1 April 1974 with the powers of a parish
council and is responsible for the following areas:
· Parks, play areas, pavilions and open spaces
· Markets
· Allotments at Weston Avenue and Alwins Field
· Cemeteries at Vandyke Road and Old Linslade Road
· Community events and Christmas illuminations
· Teenage Advice and Information Centre (TACTIC)
· Public conveniences (West Street car park)
· Publications e.g. About Town bi-monthly newsletter, annual What’s On leaflet
· Providing grants to local charitable and voluntary groups
The Council comprises 21 elected Councillors who each serve a four-year term of office.
There are eight electoral wards in the Parish:
Barnabas
Grovebury
Planets
Southcott

(3 Councillors)
(4 Councillors)
(2 Councillors)
(4 Councillors)

Brooklands
Leston
Plantation
St Georges

(2 Councillors)
(1 Councillor)
(3 Councillors)
(2 Councillors).

Town Councillors are not paid any expenses or allowances, apart from the Town Mayor, who
receives a relatively small allowance, and who attends many events throughout the region to
represent the town. The Town Mayor also organises a number of events throughout the year to
raise funds for charity.
The Town Council has four Standing Committees:
Cultural and Economic Services
Grounds and Environmental Services
Planning and Transport
Policy and Finance
In addition, there is a joint committee with Central Bedfordshire Council: the Leighton-Linslade
Partnership Committee.
Council, Committees and Sub-Committee meetings are open to the public, unless there is a special
reason for exclusion. Up to a total of fifteen minutes is allowed for representations from members
of the public, who may ask questions or make statements relating to items on the meeting agenda.
The Town Council currently employs a team of approximately 45 staff led by the Town Clerk, Mark
Saccoccio. The Council is entirely funded by the residents of Leighton-Linslade through what is
known as a precept on the council tax charge, and by generating income through services delivered.

Page8 18

TOWN COUNCIL FIVE YEAR PLAN & OBJECTIVES 2019 – 2024

6.0 Corporate Objectives 2019-2024
OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY
To ensure value for money, operational efficiency and a structure which will underpin current and future service delivery by the Town Council.
This work will be primarily within the remit of the Policy and Finance Committee.
To regularly review how we communicate and seek to embrace new technologies.

2

To continue to aim towards a paperless office.

3

To review our financial systems and develop more financial analysis/reporting

4
5

Page 19

1

To develop a customer service strategy
To review waste and recycling operations

6

To revisit the Volunteer Strategy

7

To increase environmental awareness and where practicable, seek to install planet-friendly measures

8

To work with the local authority to review and where appropriate, upgrade existing CCTV provision

9

To consider imaginative uses of Community Safety budgets for the benefit of our community

10

To renew the Council’s Quality Gold accreditation in 2021

TOWN COUNCIL FIVE YEAR PLAN & OBJECTIVES 2019 – 2024

GROWTH, COMMUNITY COHESION & INFRASTRUCTURE
To recognise and embrace the growth of our community and to seek to influence the local authority and partners to ensure adequate infrastructure
provision.
This work will be within the remit of all Committees.
11

To work collaboratively with neighbouring parishes, particularly in respect of planned housing growth.

12

To embrace the eastern urban extension and seek to integrate this into the existing community.

Page 20

13

To continue to lobby Central Bedfordshire Council for improved and timely infrastructure.

14

To review the parish boundary and ward arrangements.

15

To continue to seek ways in which to help support community safety.

16

To continue to liaise with the local authority on matters for which it is responsible and which affect residents of the parish.

10

TOWN COUNCIL FIVE YEAR PLAN & OBJECTIVES 2019 – 2024
VIBRANCY AND VITALITY OF TOWN AND TOWN CENTRE
To continue to support a vibrant town through partnership working and initiatives including management of the street market, support for local businesses,
town and community promotions and town centre enhancements.
This work will be primarily within the remit of the Cultural & Economic Services Committee.
17

To consider delivery of a Town Ranger service.

18

To promote the creation of a soft play facility within the town.

19

To identify, promote and celebrate the unique features and heritage of the Parish to both residents and visitors.

20

To consider taking on additional services, where practicable and where considered beneficial to the town.

Page 21

21

To promote the town centre as a safe and vibrant place to visit in the evening.

22

Consider the provision of town centre Wi-Fi (including footfall monitoring facility).

23

To continue to manage, promote and develop the street market.

24

To continue to deliver quality community events and regularly review their scope and delivery.

25

To consider ways to work with town centre businesses to achieve digital/ on-line commerce options and promote the town’s shopping/ leisure offer.

26

To consider ways to support the increase in leisure and personal development opportunities for youth.

27

To consider ways to support the increase in leisure opportunities for older people.

11

TOWN COUNCIL FIVE YEAR PLAN & OBJECTIVES 2019 – 2024
GREAT PUBLIC OPEN SPACES
To provide great public open spaces with varied opportunities for sport and leisure and to exceed expectations in delivering cemetery and allotment services.
This work will primarily be within the remit of the Grounds and Environmental Services Committee.
28

To refurbish Pages Park pavilion to ensure it is safe and suitable for continued community and sporting use.

29

To create a plan for the management, maintenance and use of all pavilion buildings.

30

To continue to provide excellent play equipment across the parish and to expand the range of accessible play equipment available.

31

To expand memorial services available at Town Council run cemeteries.

Page 22

32

To continue to actively seek additional cemetery land or where this is not possible, to consider other ways in which to expand burial capacity.

33

To continue to computerise historic cemetery records.

34

To create a ten year planned maintenance programme for buildings and assets.

35
36

To continue to seek freehold depot premises.
To continue to aim towards the creation of localised Friends groups.

37
38
39
40

To consider options for restoration of historic features and monuments, where practicable and viable.
To seek to maintain and enhance sporting provision
To continue to build on the success of the annual Anglia in Bloom campaign
To install interpretation panels in the parks and open spaces.

12

Contact Us
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
E: info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
T: 01525 631920
4

13 23
Page

“A community to be proud of”

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24

Agenda Item 12

COUNCIL
Date:

28 January 2019

Title:

Taxi Rank

Purpose of the Report:

To seek Member endorsement in respects of the
carrying out of a feasibility study and thereafter
delivery of a new taxi rank within the town
centre.

Contact Officer:
Corporate Objective/s
Implications:
Financial
Human Resources
Operational/Service
delivery
Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety

1.

Mark Saccoccio, Town Clerk
LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim 2. Objective 19
√ Utilising ringfenced reserves
√
√

RECOMMENDATIONS

Should members be minded, the proposals are:
1.1

That the Town Council agrees that in partnership with Central
Bedfordshire Council a review and feasibility study be carried out into the
merits of relocating the taxi rank;

1.2

That a maximum of £20,000 be drawn down from ear marked reserves
(budget code 970/9026 - £39,700) for the purposes of:i)

Appointing a consultant to carry out a feasibility study into the
merits of relocating the taxi rank and thereafter creating an
implementation strategy that would facilitate any likely move.

1.3

That Central Bedfordshire Council as highways and licensing authority
project manage on behalf of the Town Council.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

As Members are minded, the future of the taxi rank has been the subject of
considerable discussion for many years. Whilst the Town Council recognises
the value and importance taxis provide to our community, the issue is whether

Page 25

the present location of the taxi rank is the most appropriate from both an
operational and user perspective.
The Challenges
2.2

Situated at the north eastern end of the High Street, the taxi rank is licensed to
provide 4 taxi spaces only. As Members are minded, on market days (Tuesday
and Saturday), the taxi rank is temporarily moved to the opposite side of the
road in order to allow the market operation to expand as and when needed.

2.3

For many years, there has been concern that the taxi rank has outgrown its
present location. Part of the reasoning for this is to do with the way taxis are
operated and licensed. The license which is issued by Central Bedfordshire
Council allows the said holder to ply their trade anywhere they choose within
the authority area. Whilst freedom of movement is beneficial to the holder, it
can lead to concerns. Naturally, license holders will gravitate toward those
locations where business is perceived to be most buoyant and it is not unusual
on a typical day to see in excess of a dozen taxis concentrated in and around
the taxi rank within the High Street. By virtue of its size, taxis are forced to park
legally or illegally and herein lies the challenge. Despite best endeavours, the
solution does not rest with traffic enforcement who can only react to any parking
infringement.

2.4

In terms of the way the town centre now operates, an argument can be made
that the taxi rank is no longer situated in the most appropriate location. The held
view is that in order to encourage more visitors to the town centre, the town
centre experience needs to adapt in order to meet consumer demands and
expectations. As a town, we have largely embraced this with outdoor seating
provided in several of our eateries, cafes and bars. The ability to sit and relax
outdoors is a positive experience which visitors yearn for. Disappointingly, the
ability to provide a positive consumer experience is sadly compromised for the
former fire station building which shares an uncomfortable relationship with the
adjoining taxi rank. The ability to enjoy al fresco dining is severely compromised
by the juxtaposition of the taxi rank. Despite their best endeavours, it is an
inevitable consequence that taxis create exhaust fumes which do little to add to
the positive experience of those using the outside seating area. Consequently,
the area outside seating area is seldomly used to the detriment of the restaurant
as well as visitors to the town centre.

The Opportunities
2.5

Whilst the Town Council recognises the value and importance of taxis to the
community, there remains concern that more could be done to address the
present issues. Although statutory responsibility rests with the Principal
Authority for the managing and licensing of taxis, there is no reason why the
Town Council could not support the bringing forward of any scoping work
needed to help inform the future of the taxi rank. The Town Council recognises
that at times, its priorities may not necessarily align with those of the Principal

Page 26

Authority. Therefore, should Members agree that the taxi rank is a town priority
(and needs to be addressed in accordance with town council timescales),
support could be offered to the Principal Authority in bringing this work forward.
Partnership working could come in the form of the Town Council funding the
work of the consultant and the Principal Authority project managing the scheme.
This way at least, the project would benefit from having the funding (provided
by the Town Council) and the expertise provided by the Principal Authority. By
doing so, the Town Council would as stakeholder be able to influence when this
work takes place.
End

Page 27

END

Page 28

Agenda Item 14

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

Page 33

Page 34

Agenda Item 15

COUNCIL
Date:

28 January 2019

Title:

Town Council Corporate Behaviours

Purpose of the Report:

To seek Council views in respects of the
creation of corporate behavioural values
which would apply to Members and
Employees alike.

Contact Officer:

Sarah Sandiford, Head of Democratic &
Central Services

LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim
1 (to consolidate processes
and procedures, ensuring
operational efficiency and a
structure which will underpin
future service delivery by the
Town Council).

Corporate Objective/s

Implications:
Financial
Human Resources
Operational/Service
delivery
Risk/Health and Safety

√

1.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1

To note the report.

1.2

To consider endorsing the development of council wide core behavioural
values which would equally apply to Members and Employees alike.

1.3

To approve the proposed process and timescales outlined at 4.5

1.4

To consider the proposed draft behaviours, identified as a starting point
for the engagement process, as outlined at 5.

2.

BACKGROUND

Page 35

2.1

At the meeting of the Personnel Sub-Committee held on 22 October 2018,
some headline figures and findings from a recent staff survey were discussed.

2.2

Whilst many of the findings from the survey were very positive, a couple of
areas for potential improvement were identified, predominantly in respect of
improving communications and providing both recognition and opportunities for
development to individual employees.

2.3

In discussion, it was suggested that consideration be given to the question of
establishing an organisational culture and values, which would then become
embedded in the day to day operations of the Town Council.

3.

EXISTING VALUES

3.1

Whilst the Town Council does not currently have a formally adopted culture or
set of corporate values, there are values already embedded within different
areas of the organisation.

3.2

For elected Members, the key values as outlined in the Code of Conduct
(adopted by Council in 2012) are in accordance with the Nolan Principles of
public life, namely:Selflessness
Integrity
Objectivity
Accountability
Openness
Honesty
Leadership

3.3

For employees of the Council, a section of the Employee Handbook outlines
the following beliefs and values:

Integrity
Commitment
Staff
Development
Financial
Prudence
Community
Driven

3.4

That it will always act impartially and will adopt a positive
approach to resolving issues
To consult widely and to listen to ideas, to work together
with all sections of the community
To encourage and assist staff to reach their full potential,
to promote a culture of continuous improvement
The concept of value for money
That it will always act in a responsive way to the needs of
the community

In addition to the above, a number of Core Competencies were adopted as part
of the Employee Appraisal Procedure in 2015. The six Core Competencies
which apply to all employees (additional competencies apply to those with
supervisory or management responsibility) are as follows:

Page 36
Page 2 of 5

Customer Focus – Delivering high levels of customer satisfaction and using
customer views for continuous service improvement
Communication – Using interpersonal skills to relate confidently with others
to understand and be understood
Problem Solving – Identifying when a problem needs addressing, thinking
clearly and identifying - and creative solutions
Team Working – Working with others to deliver added benefits to the team
and customers
Personal Effectiveness – Possess self-awareness and manage yourself to
maximum Performance
Professional and Technical Development – Develops technical and or
professional ability and keeps abreast of development in own area of
expertise including specialist knowledge and organisational awareness
3.5

Beyond the above, the Town Council has adopted the following vision: “A
community to be proud of”.

4.

CORPORATE VALUES & BEHAVIOURS

4.1

Corporate or organisational values, once developed, would guide priorities and
actions, define how people behave and interact with each other and with
customers.

4.2

Once agreed, behaviours/values can become embedded through ongoing
communication and giving specific examples of what they mean in everyday
practice, thereby shaping the culture of the organisation.

4.3

Clear values should be a true reflection of the organisation’s aspirations for
appropriate workplace behaviour and therefore play an important part in
building a positive culture.

4.4

It is proposed that both elected Members and employees, who together
comprise and embody the Town Council as an organisation, should have an
opportunity to review and input into the process of developing core values.

4.5

Bearing in mind that the membership of the Council may change during 2019
and that new Councillors may also wish to have an input into the development
of core organisational values, a proposed timescale/process is as follows:
4.5.1

Proposed values presented at staff meeting on 31 January – to be given
consideration before the next staff meeting in April/May.

4.5.2

Proposed values presented to Council on 28 January – to be given
consideration before the next and final meeting of the current Council
on 29 April 2019.

Page 37
Page 3 of 5

4.5.3

Proposed values presented to new Council on 24 June 2019

4.5.4
5.
5.1

Feedback from all of the above to be incorporated into draft values
before consideration of adoption by new Council in September 2019.
DRAFT ORGANISATIONAL BEHAVIOURS
Bearing in mind the already existing values and competencies for both elected
Members and employees, as well as the feedback from the October 2018 staff
survey, a starting point for core organisational values is proposed as the
following:

Listening
We consult, pay attention to others and respond. We are approachable, selfaware and reflect on our impact on others.

Open
We are willing to explain, be accountable and open to challenge. We will be
co-operative and open minded.

Valuing
We care about our colleagues, staff and customers. We care about what we
do and how we do it. We respect others, our services and our environment.
We are receptive to the views of others.

Improving
We analyse and challenge how and what we deliver. We take responsibility
for change and seek to overcome barriers to change.

Supporting
We create trust with colleagues, staff and customers. We encourage,
empower and praise our colleagues and staff. We delegate appropriately and
support others to achieve.

Partnering
We understand and respect the views and needs of others and work
collaboratively. We are flexible and work to common goals and targets. We
learn from others and are open minded.

Delivering

Page 38
Page 4 of 5

Our employees support the objectives of their teams and their service. They
deliver according to agreed time scales and standards and take responsibility
for their work.
End.

Page 39
Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40

Agenda Item 16

(Sent via email)
Tuesday 22nd January, 2019

Dear Clerk to the Parish,
I am writing to you as Bedfordshire’s Police and Crime Commissioner to explain the current
state of policing in the county and to ask for your assistance.
Every community in Bedfordshire, whatever its location, tells me that they wish to see more
officers involved in local policing. Bedfordshire has just over 1100 officers to service a
population of some 670,000 currently which is forecast to exceed 700,000 within three years
and which here, as nationally, is experiencing unprecedented levels of demand with calls to
service on some weekend evenings last summer at three times the level of a New Year’s
Eve.
Bedfordshire faces the third highest terror threat in the country, substantial Serious Organised
Crime issues including Human Trafficking and Modern Day Slavery as a result of the airport
and road and rail links together with the close proximity of the capital as well as drug and gun
trade along so-called ‘county lines’ both to and from London and issues at the highest level
ever in terms of gang and knife crime countywide.
In December, I won a unique emergency payment from Government of £4.571m from the
Policing Special Grant to simply make good the cost of meeting the latter without which the
Force was heading for an overspend. I am not permitted to overspend and must bring in
policing within budget. Without the grant, recruitment would have had to stop dead.
Also in December, the Policing Minister, Nick Hurd, announced the Policing Settlement for
2019-20 for all forces. Bedfordshire Police received two grants of just £1.318m and £1.117m
(the latter being designed to help with the national shortfall in police pensions and which still
falls short of the amount needed by £115,000). Bedfordshire Police faces inflationary
pressures including an anticipated police and staff pay award of 2% which will cost in excess
of £900,000 and soaring insurance costs, including a tripling of vehicle insurance to £300,000
for this year. Your council will appreciate that, collectively, these inflationary pressures cancel
out the prospect of growth in officer numbers as well as the benefit of this income.

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Bedfordshire
Woburn Road | Kempston | Bedford | MK43 9AX
Tel: 01234 842064 | Email: pcc@bedfordshire.pnn.police.uk
Web: bedfordshire.pcc.police.uk | Twitter: @BedsPCC

Page 41

I have, however, been awarded the leeway to raise the police precept of council tax by a
maximum of £2 per month for Band D homes, without holding a referendum. Such a
referendum is not an option for me as the last one, held by my predecessor, not only cost in
the region of £1m which Bedfordshire Police could ill afford, once legal costs and the time of
the staff of the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner were taken into account, but an
appeal to raise council tax was rejected by in excess of 70% of those who voted.
I am insisting however, since all the elements of income above amount to an extra £12.5m –
albeit as a one year arrangement only – that the Force must recruit 160 Police Constables this
year to bolster local policing primarily.
I will be frank: this is not enough, especially to provide an uplift in the villages. I provided
evidence to Government in October 2017 that Bedfordshire Police requires some 300 officers
and 80 detectives to meet its crime demand in a way that is comparable with other forces
facing similar challenges.
The Government had intended to address the funding of all 43 forces more fundamentally in
December 2020, with a promise to put that of Bedfordshire Police on a more sustainable
footing permanently. I am now learning that this is likely to be delayed by a further year, in all
probability because of Brexit and the economic uncertainty that surrounds it.
The answer, in your local area, may lie in your hands. I am told by councillors from the three
unitary authorities in Bedfordshire (who are also facing substantial reductions in funding) that
the parishes hold some substantial reserves. A PCSO costs £31,200 to fund each year. If your
council wishes to consider the funding of such an officer to be dedicated to policing in the local
area, subject to agreement, I would be very grateful if you would contact me directly at
Kathryn.Holloway@Bedfordshire,pnn.police.uk
I would be very appreciative if your parish would discuss this matter at the earliest possible
opportunity and let me know the outcome as officers cannot be produced out of thin air and I
am providing every last one that this Force can conceivably afford; having already made
£34.7m of savings since austerity started and with £11m more to find over the next four years
to enable me to balance the books as I must.
All very best regards

Kathryn Holloway

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Bedfordshire
Woburn Road | Kempston | Bedford | MK43 9AX
Tel: 01234 842064 | Email: pcc@bedfordshire.pnn.police.uk
Web: bedfordshire.pcc.police.uk | Twitter: @BedsPCC

Page 42

